

ROTALIGN® Ultra iS Vibration Acceptance Check – Getting started



Vibration Acceptance Check – Getting started

Thank you for acquiring Vibration Acceptance Check, an additional application within the ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft Expert platform. In addition to the numerous useful functions available within *ROTALIGN Ultra is* [or *ROTALIGN Ultra*], this professional system can now be used in conjunction with VIBTOOL to measure vibration levels according to the ISO 10816-3 international standard.

Comprehensive information on VIBTOOL and ROTALIGN Ultra iS [or ROTALIGN Ultra] is to be found in the respective operating handbooks VIB 9.497.G, DOC 40.200.en [or ALI 9.855.G]. The intention of this guide is to provide an overview on how to carry out vibration measurements using VIBTOOL together with ROTALIGN Ultra iS or ROTALIGN Ultra.

PRÜFTECHNIK Condition Monitoring GmbH Oskar-Messter-Str. 19 – 21 85737 Ismaning Germany Fax: +49.89.99616-300 E-Mail: info@pruftechnik.com

Edition October 2014 Order number DOC 04.104.en ROTALIGN Utra firmware version 3.xx

ROTALIGN[®] and VIBTOOL[®] are registered trademarks of PRÜFTECHNIK Dieter Busch AG. PRÜFTECHNIK products are the subject of patents granted and pending throughout the world. Contents subject to change without further notice, particularly in the interest of further technical development. Reproduction, in any form whatsoever, only upon express written consent of PRÜFTECHNIK Condition Monitoring GmbH. © Copyright 2014 by PRÜFTECHNIK Condition Monitoring GmbH

Contents

Vibration Acceptance Check package	3
Vibration Acceptance Check	3
ROTALIGN Ultra Expert add-on module with VIBTOOL ALI 4.005/2-30	3
Safety and operational notes	4
Activating Vibration Acceptance Check	5
Upgrading to Shaft Advanced	5
Getting started	6
Measurement using VIBTOOL	8
Applying ISO vibration monitoring standard	9
Applying PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines	10
Applying customer-defined tolerances	11
Establishing communication between VIBTOOL	
and ROTALIGN Ultra / ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer	13
Where to measure?	14
Ideal measurement position	15
Taking measurement	15
Measurement using sensALIGN sensor	19
Applying the vibration check probe	19
Selecting the sensALIGN sensor option	20
Establishing communication between sensALIGN sensor	
and ROTALIGN Ultra / ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer	21
Taking measurement	23
Evaluation	26
According to ICO 10016 2	20
According to ISO 10810-5	20 20
	20
Measurement options	29
Unit settings	29
Measuring rotational speed (RPM) and temperature using VIBTOOL	30
Manual entry of measurement values and parameters	33
Switching between the vibration and shaft alignment applications	35
Changing machine classification or foundation characteristics	
during or after measurement	36
Saving measurement files	37
Saving report as PDF	37
How to turn VIBTOOL ON or OFF	37
Index	38

Vibration Acceptance Check package

Vibration Acceptance Check ROTALIGN Ultra Expert add-on module with VIBTOOL ALI 4.005/2-30

VIB 2.760 EU/UK/US	VIBTOOL package includes:		
	VIB 2.700 EX VIBTOOL (including		
	rechargeable battery)		
	VIB 2.720 Charger (region-dependent)		
	VIB 2.729 Case		
	VIB 9.497 Operating instructions		
ALI 4.743	ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft Expert firmware voucher (not shown)		
ALI 4.451	USB memory stick for ROTALIGN Ultra firmware update		

started (this guide)



VIB 2.720



ALI 4.451



Safety and operational notes

Note symbol

 This symbol denotes general information and tips regarding operation of ROTALIGN Ultra / ROTALIGN Ultra iS].

Notes for intrinsic safety

- The intrinsically safe VIBTOOL (VIB 2.700 EX) can be used in explosive atmospheres. The intrinsic safety notes outlined in the VIBTOOL operating instructions must be observed.
- ROTALIGN Ultra [or ROTALIGN Ultra iS] computer is NOT to be used in explosive atmospheres.

Notes regarding data storage

With any data processing software, data may be lost or altered under certain circumstances. PRÜFTECHNIK strongly recommends that you keep a backup or printed records of all important data.

PRÜFTECHNIK assumes no responsibility for data lost or altered as a result of improper use, repairs, defects, battery replacement/failures or any other cause.

PRÜFTECHNIK assumes no responsibility, directly or indirectly, for financial losses or claims from third parties resulting from the use of this product and any of its functions, such as loss or alteration of stored data.

Note that saving measurement data is possible only when VIBTOOL is used in combination with the ROTALIGN Ultra / ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer and data is transmitted to the ROTALIGN Ultra / ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer during measurement.

VIBTOOL may be used in a stand-alone capacity to carry out RPM and temperature measurements. To conduct then record, save and evaluate machine vibration measurements, VIBTOOL should be used in combination with the ROTALIGN Ultra is [or ROTALIGN Ultra] computer.

For information on saving, naming and printing measurement files, please refer to the respective operating handbook.









This quick guide assumes that the user is fully conversant with the operation of both VIBTOOL and ROTALIGN Ultra iS [or ROTALIGN Ultra] computer. It is recommended to refer to the respective operating handbook, if and when necessary.



Activating Vibration Acceptance Check

The application Vibration Acceptance Check runs on ROTALIGN Ultra iS [or ROTALIGN Ultra] computer ALI 4.202 using the add-on module with VIBTOOL ALI 4.005/2-30 or sensALIGN sensor. For both alternatives, the following conditions must be fulfilled:

- The ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft firmware must be licenced to the Advanced level.
- The application Vibration Acceptance Check will run only on ROTALIGN Ultra / ROTALIGN Ultra iS computers ALI 4.202 with black faceplate and serial number greater than 43213000.
- Use the latest ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft firmware version which is saved in the USB memory stick ALI 4.451 and delivered with the add-on module. The latest ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft firmware version may also be downloaded from the official PRÜFTECHNIK website – *www. pruftechnik.com*. Detailed instructions on how to update the firmware is found in the respective operating handbook.

Upgrading to Shaft Advanced and Shaft Expert

To be able to use Vibration Acceptance Check, ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft firmware must be licenced to Advanced level. For this upgrade, the Shaft Advanced firmware registration certificate ALI 4.741 must be purchased. The add-on module with VIBTOOL ALI 4.005/2-30 contains the ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft Expert firmware voucher ALI 4.743. This voucher is used to acquire the licence code to activate the Shaft Expert alignment platform. This platform is necessary for Live Trend [refer to DOC 04.100.en] and Multiple Coupling [refer to DOC 04.805.en].

Getting started

Press and hold ${finter}_{\odot}$ the 'On/Off/Enter' key briefly. The opening screen below appears.



Use the navigation keys to highlight the 'Vibration Acceptance Check' icon.



With the icon 'Vibration Acceptance Check' highlighted, press (internet) to start the application. If the application has not yet been licenced, a hint appears as shown in the next figure.



When the hint above appears, select 'Configuration' -> 'Licence Manager' and proceed to enter the registration key (licence code) contained in the ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft Advanced registration certificate ALI 4.741. After successful registration, the suffix 'Advanced' appears next to the version number.

🚖 License Manager - Serial	ID: 43213103		
Application name	Version	Registration	
🔀 AC device activation		No	
🐹 Bore Alignment	2.30		
Flatness	3.02		
Hydropower	2.20		
Program Manager	3.04		
Right Angle Check	3.02		
Shaft Alignment 🤇	3.04 Advanced	OTENUSCL	
Straightness	3.02		Shaft feature level
Press Enter to input registr	ation code		

The application 'Vibration Acceptance Check' can now be started. The 'Vibration Acceptance Check' wizard may be opened directly from the "Program Manager" screen or directly from within a shaft alignment file.

From the "Program Manager" screen, highlight the 'Vibration Acceptance Check' icon then press $\begin{pmatrix} enter \\ o \end{pmatrix}$ to open the 'Vibration Acceptance Check settings' wizard.

Alternatively, as the application Vibration Acceptance Check is fully integrated in the Shaft application, the wizard may be opened directly from within a shaft alignment file.



To open the Vibration Acceptance Check wizard from a shaft alignment file, use the navigation keys to highlight the vibration icon [the sine wave] then press (Enter



7

Invokes Vibration Acceptance Check.

After confirming selection, the wizard opens, showing the two measurement options available:

- Measurement using VIBTOOL
- > Measurement using sensALIGN sensor

Measurement using VIBTOOL

Vibration Acceptance Check settings	🚺 🛶 🎟
Current file name: ACME FW001	
VIBTOOL	
sensALIGN	
Barres Entre to a last source to a	

In this example, the VIBTOOL option has been highlighted for selection.

Press Enter to select sensor type

Use $(\Delta)/\nabla$ and highlight the measurement option to be used then press (finter) to confirm selection.



The 'Vibration Acceptance Check settings' wizard is used to select type of measurement to be carried out and set the appropriate machine classification.

8

When using the VIBTOOL option, three measurement standards are available:

- The first is measuring vibration severity according to ISO 10816-3
- The second standard is based on PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines
- > The third option is a user-defined measurement

Applying ISO vibration monitoring standard

Use $(\Delta)/\overline{\nabla}$ and highlight 'ISO 10816-3' [see previous screen] then press (^{Enter}) to measure vibration severity according to ISO 10816-3., highlighting the option and confirming selection opens the wizard screen below.



The appropriate machine classification may also be set by pressing $\rangle \rangle$ to open the machine power and foundation columns

ISO 10816-3 classification in imperial units: 15 kW [20 HP] 300 kW [400 HP] 50 MW [67000 HP]

Press Enter to select ISO 10816-3 machine group

Use $(\Delta)/\nabla$ to highlight the power of the machine to be measured confirming selection by pressing ${\circ}$. The foundation selection column opens.

Alternatively, pressing) ► after highlighting the machine power opens the foundation column as shown below.



Press Enter to select rigid or flexible foundation.

to highlight type of foundation then proceed

to the measurement screen by pressing either) Þ or

After completing the machine classification by selecting the type of foundation used, pressing either $\begin{pmatrix} Enter \\ \bullet \end{pmatrix}$ or $\begin{pmatrix} \triangleright \\ \bullet \end{pmatrix}$ opens the measurement screen as shown next.



Applying PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines

If taking measurements based on PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines, machines are classified into four groups. Any of the four groups may be selected by using $(\Delta)/(\nabla)$ to highlight 'The PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guideline' then pressing (P). The required machine group is then selected using $(\Delta)/(\nabla)$.



Press Enter to select rigid or flexible foundation.

After selecting the type of foundation used, press either $\overset{\text{Enter}}{\textcircled{0}}$ or $\overset{\text{}}{\textcircled{0}}$ to open the measurement screen as shown next.



Applying customer-defined tolerances

If a user-defined measurement is selected, the possibility to define customized tolerances is available. After highlighting 'User-defined measurement', press either $\begin{pmatrix} \text{Imile} \\ \bullet \end{pmatrix}$ or $\begin{pmatrix} \bullet \\ \bullet \end{pmatrix}$ to open the tolerances column, then use $\begin{pmatrix} \bullet \\ \bullet \end{pmatrix}/ \bigtriangledown$ to highlight tolerance definition.



If 'No tolerances' is selected, confirming selection by pressing (mer) opens the measurement screen.

With tolerance definition highlighted, press either (b) to open the "User tolerances" screen. Edit the tolerance range as required, then use the navigation keys and highlight the 'Proceed' button (refer to next screen).

🔁 User tolerances	🁏 🏬 💷
Current file name: ACME FW001	
Machine name:	Tolerance range:
Pump 1	2.00 mm/s
Motor 1	1.40 mm/s
Proceed	
Use Menu button to check scree	en options.

Confirm selection by pressing $\overset{\text{(fnter)}}{@}$. The measurement screen opens.



Establishing communication between VIBTOOL and ROTALIGN Ultra / ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer

Transfer of measurement data between VIBTOOL and ROTALIGN Ultra/ ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer is via Bluetooth®. For measurement to be received on the ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer, communication between the two devices must be established. When in the measurement screen, press (measurement between the use Δ/\sqrt{v} and highlight the item 'Sensor selection'.



Invokes sensor connection type dialog.

Confirm selection by pressing (a). The "Sensor selection" window appears.



Press Enter to start measurement.

Use $(\Delta)/(\nabla)$ to highlight 'Scan for wireless devices', then press (\bullet) to confirm selection.

Switch VIBTOOL on by pressing its **M** key. It will then be detected automatically by the ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer and listed in the selection screen.



Current file name: ACME FW001	
Sensor selection	
	J
•)) ▲ [SCAN for Wireless devices] • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
Press Enter to choose a sensor.	
OK Cancel	
ISO GROUP 1 C 1490 RPM 🕹 🎬	

Use $(A)/(\nabla)$ and select the active VIBTOOL then confirm selection by pressing (a) and proceed with measurement.



Use the navigation keys to highlight the required measurement locations.

14 The actual measurement location is denoted with the tip of the highlighted arrow.

Where to measure?

To obtain sufficient data for vibration analysis in compliance with ISO 10816-3, following measurements should be made for each individual machine: four radial readings (offset from each other by 90°) and one axial reading.

In practice, non-critical machines may require only two radial measurements. If however, vibration increases the other locations should be measured as well.

Ideal measurement position

When taking vibration measurements using VIBTOOL, care must be take to position the vibration sensor head correctly. If VIBTOOL is not held correctly against the machine, unreliable measurement values and damage can occur. The measurement surface must be metallic, flat and clean.

Taking measurement

Having established Bluetooth[®] communication, measurement can now be started.

- 1. If off, switch VIBTOOL on by pressing its M key.
- Place and hold the VIBTOOL sensor head against the first measurement location.
- Use the ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer navigation keys and highlight the location to be measured, then press the ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer (and the set of the



The measurement status bar Indicates that communication between ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer and VIBTOOL has been established.

 Now press the VIBTOOL M key to take measurement at the selected location, making sure that the direction of measurement and the contact pressure to the VIBTOOL vibration sensor head is correct.



Press the M key on VIBTOOL.



Press sensor firmly

to the measurement



Pay special attention and follow the on-screen hints that appear during measurement.



Note

During measurement keep the sensor head firmly pressed against the measurement point and hold it still. Measurement duration depends upon signal strength and stability. The stronger and more constant the measurement signal is, the quicker the display response will be.



The measurement status bar Indicates that measurement is in progress.

 After VIBTOOL has carried out the measurement, it automatically transmits the measurement result to the ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer. The measured results being displayed on both VIBTOOL and ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer screens.



The position arrow and the perimeter of the value box for any measured location darkens to indicate the position has been measured. Note that the colour of the arrow indicates the vibration severity.

6. Use the navigation keys to highlight the next measurement position and repeat steps 2 to 5 for all required measurement locations.

According to ISO 10816-3 10 stipulated measurements must be taken for a machine set [e.g. motor-pump combination].



After measurement is completed, a hint appears requesting whether "Vibration Acceptance Check" should be finished.

Vibration Acceptance Check	🊺 📉 💷
Current file name: ACME FW001	
VIBTOOL 007	767
Finishing Vibration Acceptance Check	
3.3 Do you want to finish Vibratio Acceptance Check?	n 4.77
Yes No	
ISO GROUP 1 C 1490 RPM	1 🗣 <u>mm</u>
Press Enter to start measurement.	

Use [P]/[] to highlight 'Yes' then confirm selection by pressing [] The evaluation is displayed in both the status line and by the colour of the machine foundation.



Should it be necessary to end measurement before taking all 10 stipulated locations [if all locations are not necessarily required], press $\stackrel{\text{(Here)}}{\longrightarrow}$ to open the context menu. Use $\stackrel{\text{(A)}}{\longrightarrow}/\stackrel{\text{(v)}}{\longrightarrow}$ to highlight the item 'Finish'.



Press $\binom{\text{Enter}}{0}$ to confirm selection. The 'Finishing Vibration Acceptance Check' hint appears.



Measurement is stopped when 'Yes' is highlighted and ${{\rm Fater}\atop {}_{\!\!\!\!0}}$ pressed to confirm selection.

Measurement using sensALIGN sensor

Applying the vibration check probe

Vibration velocity measurement is also be carried out using sensALIGN sensor ALI 4.900 used together with the vibration check probe ALI 4.905. Insert the probe in the sensALIGN sensor hole with a countersink such that the black base of the probe tip rests firmly on the sensor housing. Use the clamping lever to lock in the probe.



The sinusoid symbol indicates the sensALIGN sensor hole where the vibration check probe is to be inserted.



Clamping lever sensALIGN sensor

With the probe fully inserted and resting on the housing, push the clamping lever to the 'locked' position.

Selecting the sensALIGN sensor option

From the "Vibration Acceptance Check settings" screen, use $(\Delta)/\overline{\nabla}$ and highlight the measurement option sensALIGN

─Vibration Acceptance Check settings	🚺 📉 💷
Current file name: ACME FW001	
VIBTOOL	
sensALIGN	
Press Enter to select sensor type	

With sensALIGN highlighted, press $\stackrel{\text{(Enter)}}{\circ}$ to confirm selection.



Press Enter to select Pruftechnik guideline or custom standard.

It is NOT possible to measure vibration according to ISO 10816-3 if



The two available measurement standards are:

PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines

using the sensALIGN sensor option.

User-defined measurement

After selecting the desired measurement standard, proceed to classify the machine appropriately by selecting the machine power and type of mounting foundation. [Please refer to descriptions given under 'Measuring using VIBTOOL starting on page 8.]



In this example, PRUFTECHNIK vibration guidelines are applied to a group 3 machine mounted on a rigid foundation.

Press Enter to select rigid or flexible foundation.

After completing the machine classification by selecting the type of foundation used, pressing either $\binom{\text{Finter}}{6}$ or $\binom{1}{2}$ opens the measurement screen.

Establishing communication between sensALIGN sensor and ROTALIGN Ultra / ROTALIGN Ultra is computer

Switch sensALIGN sensor on by pressing its On/Off push button switch. With the measurement screen open, press then use Δ/\overline{v} and highlight the item 'Sensor selection'.





21

Confirm selection by pressing ${}^{(Enter)}_{\textcircled{O}}$. The sensor selection window opens.

CVibration Acceptance Check States Current file name: ACME FW001	Note: If the active sensALIGN sensor
•)) (SCAN for Wireless devices) • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	is already listed in the "Sensor
Press Enter to start scanning.	selection" screen, use a / $\overline{\nabla}$ and select this particular sensor,
OK Cancel GROUP 3 C 1490 RPM 🗣 🏢	pressing enter.
Press Enter to start measurement.	

Use (A)/ v to highlight 'Scan for wireless devices', then press of to confirm selection. sensALIGN sensor will be detected automatically by the ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer and listed in the selection screen.

Vibration Acceptance Check	🊺 📥 💷
Current file name: ACME FW001	
Sensor selection	
● ▲ [SCAN for Wireless devices]	
🛃 👀 🖗 sensALIGN 49000680	
Press Enter to choose a sensor.	
OK 🔀 Cancel	
GROUP 3 C 1490 RPM	
Press Enter to start measurement.	

22

Use $(\Delta)/(\nabla)$ and select the active sensALIGN sensor then confirm selection by pressing (Enter) and proceed with measurement.



Press Enter to start measurement.

Use the navigation keys to highlight the required measurement locations. The actual measurement location is denoted with the tip of the highlighted arrow.

Taking measurement

With the probe securely locked in, place its on the appropriate measurement location while holding the sensALIGN sensor firmly.



Exercise CAUTION when carrying out vibration measurement using the vibration check probe.



Press $\stackrel{\text{(inter)}}{\odot}$ to start measurement at the location the where the tip of the vibration check probe is placed. Hold sensor firmly until measurement is completed. The time taken depends on the severity of the vibration, and can take up to 15 seconds.



When measurement is completed, it is displayed on the ROTALIGN Ultra/ ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer screen.



The position arrow and the perimeter of the value box for any measured location darkens to indicate the position has been measured. Note that the colour of the arrow indicates the vibration severity.

Use the navigation keys to highlight the next measurement position and repeat the measurement procedure as described previously for all required measurement locations.



24

After measurement is completed, a hint appears requesting whether "Vibration Acceptance Check" should be finished.



Press Enter to start measurement.

Use [b]/(a] to highlight 'Yes' then confirm selection by pressing [b]/(a]. The evaluation is displayed in both the status line and by the colour of the machine foundation.



Should it be necessary to end measurement before taking all 10 stipulated locations [if all locations are not necessarily required], press $\stackrel{\text{mem}}{\longrightarrow}$ to open the context menu. Use $\stackrel{\text{(A)}}{\longrightarrow}/\stackrel{\text{(v)}}{\longrightarrow}$ to highlight the item 'Finish'.



Use arrow keys to navigate through the menu.

Press ^(Friter) to confirm selection. The 'Finishing Vibration Acceptance Check' hint appears.



Measurement is stopped when 'Yes' is highlighted and ${}^{\text{Enter}}_{\odot}$ pressed to confirm selection.

Evaluation

According to ISO 10816-3

The resulting colour of the machine foundation illustrates the vibration evaluation scale. The displayed foundation colour corresponds to the highest measured vibration value.



In this example, the highest noted value is 6.09 mm/s and its corresponding position arrow is yellow. The machinery foundation is therefore displayed with the colour yellow.

ISO 10816-3 separates the working conditions into four colour zones - here also the colour of the foundations:

New machine	Blue	Newly commissioned
Long-term	Green	Indefinite continuous operation
Short-term	Yellow	Short-term operation allowed
Damaged	Red	Vibration is causing damage

The ISO 10816-3 evaluation scale displayed in tabular format may also be accessed via the evaluation screen context menu. Open the context menu by pressing while in the evaluation screen.



Use the navigation keys to highlight 'ISO 10816-3' -> 'ISO

Shows ISO 10816-3 tolerance table

With the item 'ISO tolerance' highlighted, press $\stackrel{\text{\tiny Enter}}{\bigcirc}$ to open the tabular evaluation scale.



ISO evaluation: C. Short term operation allowed.

Note that the highlighted classification are those of the machine file currently open.

According to PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines

In this case, the displayed foundation colour corresponds to the highest measured vibration value.



In this example, the highest noted value is 3.50 mm/s and its corresponding position arrow is green. The machinery foundation is therefore displayed with the colour green.

PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines also separate the working conditions into four colour zones:

New machine	Blue	Newly commissioned
Long-term	Green	Indefinite continuous operation
Short-term	Yellow	Short-term operation allowed
Damaged	Red	Vibration is causing damage

28

The PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines evaluation scale displayed in tabular format may also be accessed via the evaluation screen context menu. Open the context menu by pressing ^{Menu} while in the evaluation screen.



Use the navigation keys and highlight 'PT vibration guideleine' -> 'Tolerances'.

Shows tolerance table

With the submenu item 'Tolerances' highlighted, press ${}^{\text{(fnter)}}_{\textcircled{0}}$ to open the tabular evaluation scale.

∿То	lerances							\$	mm/s	
Current file name: ACME FW001										
	ti B									
9	group 1 machine P>300kW motors		1		2		3		4	
m			ookw tors	P>15kW motors		pumps>15kW external		pumps>15kW integrated		
fou	ndation		8		8		8		8)	
	11.0-		_	1000						
10	7.1-11.0	_	_							
Ϋ́,	4.5-7.1			_						
1 t	3.5-4.5		_				_			
E I	2.8-3.5									
ve	2.3-2.8								_	
	1.4-2.3	and the second				(R)			and a	
	0.0-1.4 new machi	ne E	3. long t	erm	C. s	short term		D. damaç	ge	
PT guideline evaluation: A. Newly commissioned machines.										

Note that the highlighted classification are those of the machine file currently open.

Measurement options

The following measurement options are described below:

- Unit settings
- Measurement of rotational speed (RPM) and temperature measurement of RPM is only possible when using VIBTOOL
- Manual entry and display of measurement values and parameters
- > Changing application from Shaft Alignment to Vibration Analysis
- Editing machine properties
- Measurement history

Unit settings

Vibration velocity is measured in either mm/s or in inch/s. The units are set within ROTALIGN Ultra/ ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer for use with VIBTOOL. Access units using the global menu item 'Configuration'. The global menu may be opened from any screen by pressing et wice. With the global menu open, use the navigation keys to highlight 'Configuration' -> 'Units'.



Confirm selection by pressing (enter). The "Units" screen opens.

The "Units" screen is used to set the required

units.

(
Millimeters		ł
Standard		÷
Normal resolution		
Distance: Corrections: Results: Angle:	12 mm 12.34 mm 12.34 mm 45.12º	
Celsius degree	s	+
Degrees (°)		+
	Standard Normal resolu Distance: Corrections: Results: Angle: Celsius degree Degrees (°)	Standard Normal resolution Distance: 12 mm Corrections: 12.34 mm Angle: 45.12° Celsius degrees Degrees (°)

Measuring rotational speed (RPM) and temperature using VIBTOOL

RPM and temperature measured using VIBTOOL can be displayed on the ROTALIGN Ultra/ ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer.

While in the "Vibration Acceptance Check" screen, press it open the context menu. Use the navigation keys to highlight either item ('RPM'/'Temperature').



To select RPM use the navigation keys and highlight 'Take measurement' -> 'RPM'.

Press $\stackrel{\text{Enter}}{\odot}$ to confirm selection.

If VIBTOOL is switched on and Bluetooth[®] communication activated, the measured RPM is transmitted and automatically displayed on the ROTALIGN Ultra computer.



For further information regarding RPM measurement and the related measurement sensors please refer to the VIBTOOL operating instructions VIB 9.497.G.

The machine RPM is an important factor in determining the correct vibration values. For machines with an RPM > 600, measurement is carried out with a frequency range of 10-1000 Hz as compared to those with a lower RPM where the frequency range is 2-1000 Hz. Therefore, the machine RPM must be established before taking any vibration measurements.



To carry out temperature measurements, use the navigation keys to highlight the location where temperature is to be measured. Use the screen context menu to highlight 'Take measurement' -> 'Temperature' then press $\hat{f}_{0}^{\text{inter}}$ to confirm selection. Follow the on-screen hints to carry out and record the measurement.



After the temperature has been measured using VIBTOOL, the measured value is transferred via wireless Bluetooth® communication and displayed on the ROTALIGN Ultra/ ROTALIGN Ultra iS computer.



The editing box then appears with the hint to the location measured [e.g. "Temperature M/s A horizontal NDS" – M/s stands for machine and NDS stands for 'Non-Drive Side'. The 'Driver Side' is denoted using DS]. If required, the parameter name may be edited within the editing box and confirmed by pressing $\frac{\text{fnter}}{\text{op}}$. The accepted parameter name will appear on the measurement table alongside the measured temperature.

Manual entry of measurement values and parameters

When using either VIBTOOL or sensALIGN sensor, known measurement values and parameters may be manually entered.

While in "Vibration Acceptance Check" screen, press (mem) then use the following 'Take measurement' submenu items: 'Enter velocity RMS', 'Enter RPM', 'Enter temperature' and 'Add parameter' to enter desired parameter.

This example uses

sensALIGN sensor.



Use arrow keys to navigate through the menu.

The "Vibration Acceptance Check" screen displays vibration values. Recorded temperature values or any other parameters are indicated as present through use of a pencil icon. Note that the hand icon denotes that the displayed vibration value has been manually entered.



Hand icon - for manually entered vibration values

To establish the type of information recorded for any particular measurement point, press (Mem), then use (A/∇) and highlight the context menu item 'Parameters'.



Press ^(finter) to confirm selection. The "Parameters" screen opens, displaying all none vibration parameters and values.

Parameters		🚺 式 💷		
Current file name: ACME FW001				
	sensALIGN 49000680			
Parameter name	Value	Unit		
RPM (manual)	1449	RPM		
Temperature M/s A horizontal D	24.8	°C		
Temperature	25.3	°C		
Measurement history				
Shows measurement history.				

The "Parameters" screen displays all manually entered and measured none vibration parameters. The screen may also be used to access the "Measurement history" screen.

While in the "Parameters" screen, measurement history may be accessed by highlighting the button 'Measurement history...' then pressing (new or confirm selection. The "Measurement history" screen displays the vibration values.

Ľ	Measurement history				🚺 🚧 💷				
0	Current file name: ACME FWG	001							
	Measurement	Current			24-10-2014 11:37				
	M/s A vertical NDS		1.13	mm/s]				
	M/s A horizontal NDS		2.69	mm/s]				
	M/s A vertical DS)	1.71 mm/s				
	M/s A horizontal DS	🔪 🧼 🖉	2.66	mm/s	1.30 mm/s				
	M/s A axial	<i>~</i>	2.00	mm/s					
	M/s B vertical DS		0.01	mm/s	0.01 mm/s				
	M/s B horizontal DS				0.40 mm/s				
	Parameters								
ι	Use Menu button to check screen options.								

The "Measurement history" screen displays the last two sets of vibration measurements taken. The current measurement set may be deleted by pressing ((measurement set' and confirming selection by pressing ((finter)). The "Measurement history" screen may also be used to access the "Parameters" screen.

Switching between the vibration and shaft alignment applications

Existing shaft alignment files can be opened and used to carry out vibration measurements. All parameters entered during set-up are taken over for the vibration measurement.

As Vibration Acceptance Check is fully integrated in the Shaft Alignment application, it is possible to revert readily from vibration measurements to shaft alignment measurement. Press while in the "Vibration Acceptance Check" screen then use the navigation keys and highlight either effective or the screen the set of the set of



Invokes Setup screen.

With the 'DIM' icon highlighted, press $\begin{pmatrix} fnter\\ 0 \end{pmatrix}$ to confirm selection. A hint appears requesting the confirmation to quit Vibration Acceptance Check.

Vibration Acceptance Check	🚺 📩 💷
Current file name: ACME FW001	
sensALIGN 49000	0680
Vibration Acceptance Check exiting	
Image: State of the s	
Yes No	
GROUP 1 C 1449 RPM	
Press Enter to start measurement	

Use [P]/[] and highlight 'Yes' then confirm selection by pressing [] or any then proceed with the Shaft Alignment application.

For details on Shaft Alignment, please refer to the respective system operating handbook.

When in Shaft Alignment, one may revert back to Vibration Acceptance Check by pressing $\stackrel{\text{Mero}}{\longrightarrow}$ then using the navigation key to highlight $\stackrel{\text{C}}{\longrightarrow}$ the 'Vibration Acceptance Check' icon, and confirming selection by pressing $\stackrel{\text{(fintro)}}{\longrightarrow}$.

Changing machine classification or foundation characteristics during or after measurement

If necessary, the machine classification or foundation characteristics may be changed during or after measurement. To do this, press mean while in the "Vibration Acceptance Check" screen. The context menu appears. Use the navigation keys and highlight the applied vibration monitoring standard – this could be either 'ISO 10816-3' or 'PT vibration guideline', followed by the required machine classification or type of foundation.



In this example, the applied vibration monitoring standard is PRÜFTECHNIK vibration guidelines.

36 After highlighting the required characteristic, press (mer) to confirm selection. The submenu item 'Start wizard' is used to start the 'Vibration Acceptance Check settings' wizard. This function may be used during and after measurement to classify machines and define the foundation.



Use arrow keys to navigate through the menu.

The applied vibration

monitoring standard,

the machine classification and the foundation

characteristic may be

'Vibration Acceptance

Check settings' wizard.

changed using the

Use the navigation keys and highlight the submenu item 'Start wizard' then press ${{\left[{{{{\rm{mer}}}} \right]}} \atop \otimes }$ to confirm selection.



Press Enter to select rigid or flexible foundation.

Saving measurement files

Measurement files may be saved in the same manner as described in the respective ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra iS Shaft operating handbook.

Saving report as PDF

File measurement reports may be saved directly from the system as a PDF copy. To do this please follow the procedure described in the respective ROTALIGN Ultra/ROTALIGN Ultra is Shaft operating handbook.

How to turn VIBTOOL ON or OFF

Turn on VIBTOOL by pressing the '**M**' key until the LCD lights up. After about one second, the device enters Bluetooth mode, signified by the text '**bt**' at the bottom of the screen.

Turn off VIBTOOL by pressing [\bigcirc] the DOWN key and [\bigcirc] the UP key simultaneously.

For detailed operation of VIBTOOL please refer to the VIBTOOL operating instructions VIB 9.497 G.

A printout of the measurement report saved as a PDF file.



Index

A

ALI 4.005/2-30 add-on module 3 ALI 4.451 USB memory stick 3 ALI 4.743 3, 5

В

Bluetooth 13, 15, 23, 31

I

ISO 10816-3 8, 17 evaluation scale 27 ISO 10816-3] 14

Ν

NDS non-drive side 32

Ρ

R

PDF measurement report 37

38

ROTALIGN Ultra Shaft firmware update 5

S

sensALIGN sensor ALI 4.900 19 Shaft feature level 7

V

VIB 2.700 EX intrinsically safe VIBTOOL 4 VIB 2.760 VIBTOOL package 3 Vibration check probe ALI 4.905 19 usage 19 Vibration sensor head 15

W

Wizard 8

Notes	
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-
	- 39
	-
	-
	-
	-
	-

Notes

Visit our Internet homepage for information on new products, accessories and technical applications.

www.pruftechnik.com

ROTALIGN® Ultra and VIBTOOL® are registered trademarks of PRÜFTECHNIK Dieter Busch AG. No copying or reproduction of this information, in any form whatsoever, may be undertaken without express written permission of PRÜFTECHNIK Condition Monitoring GmbH. The information contained in this leaflet is subject to change without further notice due to the PRÜFTECHNIK policy of continuous product development. PRÜFTECHNIK products are subject to patents granted or pending throughout the world.



PRÜFTECHNIK Condition Monitoring GmbH Oskar-Messter-Str. 19 – 21 85737 Ismaning Germany Tel +49 89 99616-0 Fax +49 89 99616-300 info@pruftechnik.com www.pruftechnik.com

A member of the PRÜFTECHNIK Group